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CORPORATE SERVICES COMMISSION 
Clerk's Department 

June 26, 2001 

PMA Group Ltd. 
8980 Woodbine Avenue 
Markham, Ontario 
L3R OJ7 

Attention: Mr. Howard Kideckel 

Dear Mr. Kideckel: 
• 

Re: By-Law #2001-147 - To Designate Property as being of 
Historic and/or Architectural Value or Interest 
The Alexander Brown House - 8980 Woodbine Avenue 

This will advise that Council at its meeting held on June 12, 2001 passed By-law 2001-
147, to designate ''The Alexander Brown House - 8980 Woodbine Avenue, as being of 
historic and/or architectural value or interest. 

A registered copy of the by-law is attached for your information. 

Yours truly, 

Sheila Birrell 
Town Clerk 

Encl. 

SB/jik 

c: :To.e. D.ntf!rio Herit·a_ge F9y_11datiQD. 
Mr. R. Hutcheson, Heritage Planner 

• 
• 
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Clause 2, Report No. 24,2001 

of EXCELLENCE 

-

A by-law to designate a certain property as being of 
Historic and/or Architectural Value or futerest 

The Alexander Brown House 

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, the council of a 
municipality is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all 
the buildings and structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or 
interest; 

REAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Markha1n has caused 
to be served on the owners of the lands and premises at: 

PMA GROUP LTD . 
8980 Woodbine Avenue 
Markham, Ontario L3R OJ7 
Attention: Mr. Howard Kideckel 

and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate The 
Alexander Brown House, located at 8980 Woodbine Avenue, Markha1n, and has 
caused such notice of intention to be published once 'in a newspaper having a general 
circulation in the municipality; 

WHEREAS the reasons for designation are set out in Schedule ''B'' attached 
l1ereto and forming part of this by-law; 

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN 
OF HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. THAT the following real property, more particularly described in Schedule 
''A'' attached hereto and for1ning part of this by-law is hereby designated as 
being of historic and/or architectural value or interest: 

The Alexander Brown House 
8980 Woodbine Avenue 
Town of Markham 
Tl1e Regional Mt1nicipality of York 

2. THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law 
to be registered against the property described in Schedt1le ''A'' attacl1ed l1ereto 
i11 tl1c property Land Registry Office. 

READ A FIRST, SECOND, 
12TH DAY OF , 2001. 

SHEILAB 

• 

PASSED THIS 

• 

• 

ON COUSENS, MAYOR 

I, SHEILA BIRRELL. TOWN CLERK OF THE 
TOWN OF MARKHAM, CERTIFY THAT THIS IS A 
PHOTOCOPY OF THE ORIGINAL...._ __ _ 
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In the Town of Markhatn in the Regional Municipality of York, property description 
as follows: 

PT. LOT 14, CONCESSION 3 ().,o c..- ,, 300 
TOWN OF 
REGIONAL CIP ALITY OF YORK 

• 

• 

• 
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STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR DESIGNATION 

Tl1e Alexander Brown House is reco1ru11ended for designation under Part IV of the 
Ontario Heritage Act because of its historical and arcl1itectural significance. 

' 

Historical Reasons 

The house now located at 8980 Woodbine Avenue was built in 1858 on Lot 11, 
Concession 3, in the community of Brown's Comers. The dwelling was constructed 
for the Browns, a significant local fa1nily, and is an excellent exa1nple of a Georgian 
Farml1ouse. Altl1ough relocated to Lot 13, Concession 3 in tl1e 1980's to avoid 
demolition, the house remains one of the most significant landmarks of this part of 

Mark11am. 

The Crown patent to Lot 11, Concession 3 was granted to King's College on January 
3, 1828. Alexander Brown Sr. purchased the eastern half of 100 acres for £125 from 
tl1e college ten years later on April 26, 1838. Alexander Sr. (1771-1851) with his 
wife Martha (1778-1850) sold 85 acres for a nominal sum to their son, Alexander Jr. 
on May 17, 1843. The transfer of land undoubtedly occ11rred in honour of the recent 
marriage of Alexander Jr. to Sarah, which took place by 1840. The Brown's had 
eleven children: Margaret, Jane, John, Martha, Alexander, Sarah Ann, Ja111es, 
William, Nancy, Elizabeth, and twins, Henry and Mary. The farnily tree for1ns part of 
the history of this property. 

By 1851, Alexander Jr. had 84 acres under cultivation and was growing wheat, peas, 
oats, potatoes, car·rots and hay. He was able to produce 400 pounds of butter, 50 
pounds of cheese, 50 pounds of wool, 40 yards of flannel, 4 ba1rels of beef and 10 
barrels of pork. 

The first house on the original lot was the frarne building which until 1982 formed the 
rear section of the present brick building. It was probably built in the 1840s. The 
brick l1ouse which faced Highway 7 was built several years later to accommodate tl1e 
growing Brown farnily. It is very similar in design to the Galloway House, built in 
1858, which until 1995 stood on Lot 10, Concession 3. 

Tl1e Brown family were very active in tl1e community. John Brow11 became a 
Sergeant Major and then Second Lieutenant in the Third Regiment .of Cavalry, 
Markham Troop, under the command of Major James Elliott of Buttonville. 
Alexander Brown Sr. donated tl1e land for tl1e Brow11's Corners Presbyte1·ia11 Cl1urcl1 
in 1843 and there is still a church on the lot. 

On the deatl1 of Alexander Jr., the property was willed to his five sons. John, James, 
Alexander and Henry released their claim and William inherited the family farm and 
house. Willia1n married Sarah Jane Perry who had, four years earlier in 1891, 
inherited five acres of the original Brown lands from her father William. William 
Perry had purchased the land in 1877 and operated an inn at Brown's Comers ''The 
Derry West Hotel'' . 

William and Sarah Jane Brown had eleven children between 1896 and 1914, only two 
of whom died in infancy. Their second son, John Edward inherited the family fa11n on 
the death of his father in the 1920s and raised three children in the house. On John 
Edward's death in 1962, the ownership of the property passed to his wife Mildred and 
for several years the Brown fa1:m was cultivated by her son Harvey. The fai·m was 
sold to a development corporation in 1968. 
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By the early 1980s, after being tenanted and then left vacant for a number of years, the 
Alexander Brown House was threatened with demolition by new development. In 
November 1984, the house was rescued by Susan and Ed Casella who purcl1ased tl1e 
house and relocated the front section of it to their property at 8980 Woodbine Avenue 
in the ha1nlet ofButtonville. In the following years, the house was restored and a new 
addition was built to the rear. 

A smaller house was originally located on the property, however, this was relocated to 
another lot in the village, immediately to the rear of the subject lot, where it now 
fronts onto Buttonville Crescent West. 

Architectural Reasons 
The Alexander Brown House is an example of a Georgian cottage ( originally with a 
tail built in the style of an Ontario Cottage). One and a half storeys in height, the red 
brick house has three symmetrically placed bays across its front. Originally tl1e house 
had chimneys on the gable ends. 

The trim on the gable roof consists of returned eaves and a wide frieze board. Yellow 
brick is used as follows: to for111 quoins on the corners to create a diamond shaped 
pattern in the apex of each gable end and for the radiating vouOssoirs over tl1e 
windows (now painted white). 

• 

The original windows have all been replaced. Originally they would have been wood, 
double hung with a six over six pane division. In the early 20

1
h Century, many of the 

windows were replaced with windows of a 2/2 pane division. The doorway features a 
six panel door sur·rounded by sidelights and a transom. All windows have wood sills. 
The roof would have originally been clad in wood shingles. 

The brickwork on tl1e house was of a local variety and is believed to l1ave been dyed 
with red oxide powder in order to achieve unifor1nity in fmish. 

The new additions to the house have been built to reflect the historical appearance of 
the house on its original location. The connecting wing is of brick, built in a similar 
form to the original, whereas the rear wing is frame, which reflects the cl1aracter of the 
original c.1840s house which later became the rear tail of the 185 8 brick structure. 

At the time of the relocation of the house in 1984, the then owner of the property, 
Susan Casella presented the following architectural· interpretation of the house based 
on details uncovered prior to the restoration of the house: 

Susan Casella 's Notes 

''The front sectio11 of the lzouse is built of triple brick a11d plaste,·ed 
right over the brick. The walls were then wallpapered. Several years 
later, to keep out the dampness, all the exteri9r walls were lathed with 
~ '' lath and re-plastered. We have made several holes in the 
downstairs walls and the original wallpaper can be seen. 

The kitchen wing, built of double brick, was originally one storey. 
Before the turn of the century a second floor was added over the 
ldtchen, with its own staircase and no exit to the otlzer upstairs roo,ns. 
This was the farm help 's bedroom and later an un,narried male 
relative 's. 

I think the frame building at the back of the ldtcl1en was built about the 
same time as tlze house. Tlze strange way the roofline is attached to 
the rest of the house is because it was later ti~d into the new second 

· storey. The frame section only had one small plastered room, the other 
part was without a floor and was entered by a carriage sized double 
door. The kitclzen entrance to tlze Jra,ne section was a later cut 
through. · 

• 



~ ... ,. 
') 'I', 

... By-law 2001-147 
PageS 

' 

• 

The l1ouse has bee11 changed very little over the years. Whe11 the roonz 
above the ldtchen was added, the second window on the main floor 
west side was closed in, possibly to turn the butler's pantry into a 
ldtchen pantry because the ldtchen was made smaller when the 
staircase was added. This room was later cut in half and a bathroom 
added. The family room (sitting) fireplace was filled in about 1920 
and replaced with a parlour stove. 

A wall was removed between two small rooms, a downstairs bedroom 
and company sitting room, about the same time. The front porch is not 
original. Until we take it off we can't tell if there are blocks in the 
bricks showing there was one when the house was built. 

The basement was deep and had bins and shelves (21-23 '' wide boards) 
for food storage. There was an outside entrance under the front 
window on the east (now north) side. '' 

Contextual Reasons 

Although the Alexander Brown house has been relocated from its original location, it 
remains close to its historic location and continues. to serve as an important heritage 
landmark. Together with the other historic houses in the vicinity, the house reinforces 
the sense of history of the forn1er rural hamlet of Buttonville. The structure is an 
important contributor to the Buttonville Heritage Conservation District Study Area. 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

• 

The owners of the property have agreed to allow the Town of Markha111 to designate 
the Alexander Brown House under the Ontario Heritage Act and register such title 
against the title of the lands. 
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